
 
 

ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 7 December 2015 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Geoff Ellis (Chair), Liz Maxwell (Vice-Chair), 
Carol Daniel, Tony Gray, Ronald Hills, Adrianna McNulty, 
Ric Metcalfe, Edmund Strengiel and Loraine Woolley 
 

Substitute member(s): 
 

Councillors Marika Riddick, Gill Clayton-Hewson and 
Ralph Toofany 
 

Independent Person(s): 
 

Chris Elkington and Roger Vine 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Democratic Services and Becky Scott 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 21 September 2015  
 

3 - 6 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Individual Electoral Registration - Update  
 

7 - 10 

4.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

11 - 14 

5.  Improving Member Development Attendance  
 

15 - 18 

6.  Proposed Changes to the Constitution  
 

19 - 42 

7.  A Councillor's Guide to Interests  
 

43 - 54 

8.  Work Programme Update  
 

55 - 60 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally blank.



Ethics and Engagement Committee 21 September 2015 

 
Present: Councillor Geoff Ellis (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors: Carol Daniel, Tony Gray, Ronald Hills, Liz Maxwell, 

Adrianna McNulty, Ric Metcalfe, Edmund Strengiel and 
Loraine Woolley 
 

Independent Person(s): Chris Elkington 
 

Apologies for Absence: Roger Vine 

 
10.  Confirmation of Minutes - 8 June 2015  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2015 be confirmed. 
 

11.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. Councillor Metcalfe noted that he would 
leave the room during the consideration of the agenda item titled ‘Member Code of 
Conduct Complaints Considered by the Monitoring Officer’ [minute no. 16] as it 
related to complaints made directly against members of the City of Lincoln Council 
from which discussions, as Leader of the Council, he was excluded from by the 
Committee’s terms of reference. 
 

12.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

The Legal and Democratic Services Manager: 
 

a) presented a report containing information on recent cases relating to other 
local authorities' codes of conduct. 

 
b) summarised the cases within the report, noting the particular areas which 

members might wish to consider. 
 

c) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members: 
  

 considered how the Council’s approach to a member fraudulently claiming to 
hold qualifications might differ from that of the local authority identified within 
the report. 

 discussed the manner in which freedom of speech interplayed with the need 
to be aware of the context in which a councillor was speaking and the 
potential for offence to be caused. 

 noted the difficulty for a councillor in determining whether to offer character 
references in support of residents. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

13.  Local Democracy Week Update  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

3

Item No. 1



a) presented a report regarding the Council’s attempts to work with local schools 
in promoting local democracy. 
 

b) advised members that after being approached by the Council a number of 
schools had expressed in an interest in taking part in Local Democracy Week.  
 

c) noted that it had been difficult to encourage secondary schools to commit to 
dates for any activities, although one event had been provisionally arranged 
on which members were to be consulted. 

 
d) explained that a local primary school had also expressed an interest in taking 

part in a similar event which would promote democratic skills such as 
debating to a children of a younger age group. 
 

e) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members: 
  

 noted their willingness to take part in events with local schools and requested 
that further details of each planned event be sent to them by email. 

 discussed suitable formats and topics for events with different age groups. 
 
RESOLVED that:  
 

1. the report be noted. 
 

2. officers be requested to email members with further details of the planned 
events with local schools to allow members to confirm which of the events 
they would be able to attend. 

 
14.  Member Development Update  

 
The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) summarised the member development events held in the past six months. 
 

b) invited members to provide feedback regarding the member development 
programme, including suggestions for future member training topics and 
events. 

 
c) invited members’ questions and comments. 

 
The Legal and Democratic Services Manager: 
 

d) further updated regarding a recent postponed training event involving 
Lincolnshire Police at which the members in attendance were noted largely to 
be the same members who attended the training in previous years. 
 

e) requested members’ input regarding improving attendance rates at member 
development events in general. 

 
Members: 
  

4



 discussed the reasons for which councillors were unable to attend member 
development events and considered whether officers could request 
explanations as to why members had failed to attend events. 

 considered whether the Council should attempt to reintroduce e-learning as 
an alternative to requiring councillors to attend training. 

 expressed the view that, in view of lack of sanctions available to officers, 
political groups should take principal responsibility for ensuring members 
were attending any necessary member development events. 

 considered whether member induction events could be made more engaging, 
noting that two-day events could test the patience of members in attendance. 

 noted the potential for member development attendance to be published on 
the Council’s website to incentivise high attendance. 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 

1. the report be noted. 
 

2. officers be requested to provide a further report setting out methods by which 
the proportion of members taking part in member development events could 
be improved. 

 
15.  Work Programme Update  

 
The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) presented the current Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 
for consideration by members. 
 

b) confirmed that the item previously discussed regarding improving member 
development attendance would be added to the work programme for the next 
scheduled meeting. 
 

c) invited members' questions and comments.  
 
RESOLVED that the work programme be approved. 
 

16.  Member Code of Conduct Complaints Considered by the Monitoring Officer  
 

Councillor Metcalfe left the room during the consideration of this item as it related to 
complaints made directly against members of the City of Lincoln Council from which 
discussions, as Leader of the Council, he was excluded from by the Committee’s 
terms of reference. 
 
The Legal and Democratic Services Manager:  
 

a) presented the report relating to complaints against councillors which had been 
considered by the Monitoring Officer and had been determined as requiring 
no action. 
 

b) invited members to note the report. 
 

RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

5



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  7 DECEMBER 2015  
 

 
SUBJECT:  
 

INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION - UPDATE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

RESOURCES 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

STEVE SWAIN – PRINCIPAL DEMOCRATIC OFFICER 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 To provide an update to the Ethics and Engagement Committee on the Individual 
Electoral Registration system (IER) since its inception on the 10 June 2014. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On 10 June 2014 the way in which persons registered to vote changed. The 
Government introduced IER across the country. The system was introduced 
through the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 which became law 
on the 31 January 2013. Previously registration was done by the householder, 
who was responsible for completing the registration on behalf of all residents 
eligible to vote in the household. Under IER, everyone in the household who is 
eligible to vote is responsible for registering themselves. Householders are initially 
required to complete a Household Enquiry Form (HEF) with the details of all 
occupants. Any person who is not currently registered will be sent an IER form 
which requires them to provide the following information: 
 

 Name 

 Address 

 Date of Birth 

 National Insurance number 

 Nationality 
 
All applications received are processed through the Council’s Electoral 
Registration software system and submitted to the Government’s IER portal for 
checking against DWP information. Once confirmation is received electors are 
entered on the electoral register. In a small number of cases where applications 
are rejected further information including passport and other documentary 
evidence is requested. 
 

2.2 
 

In 2014 the details of all persons on the electoral register were submitted to the 
Government’s portal for comparison with information held by the DWP. In Lincoln 
we had an 82% comparison rate and all of these persons were sent a confirmation 
letter and did not have to take any further action. The remaining individuals who 
did not confirm through the DWP comparison and who could not be confirmed via 
local data matching were sent HEF’s and then IER forms. 
 

2.3 
 

Following this work the register was published on the 1 December 2014 with a 
total electorate of 62,849. 
 

7

Item No. 3



2.4 In early 2015 further work was undertaken to encourage registration including:- 
 

 Mapping of Empty Properties 

 Empty Property Canvass 

 Issue of Household Notification Letters to all occupied properties 

 Use of social media to advise people to register 
 

2.5 As a consequence of this additional work the number of eligible electors registered 
and able to vote at the Parliamentary election was 67,557 an increase of 7.49%. 
 

3. 2015 Canvass 

3.1 In July 2015 the first full canvass commenced under IER with HEF’s being 
delivered to all properties in Lincoln. HEF’s were pre-printed with the details of 
persons currently registered at the property. If the details were correct a member 
of the household could sign the form and return it to the Council and not be 
required to take any further action. Facilities to respond by text, sms and 
telephone were also offered, and over 8,000 electors took advantage of this to 
confirm their details. 
 
In addition a student was employed to deliver forms to student properties on the 
University Campus. Further work will be undertaken with the University in the new 
year to publicise student voting rights who unlike other electors can choose to 
register at their home or term time address or both. 
 

3.2 In the event of changes being made IER forms were sent to persons who had 
been entered on to the forms and required to be registered.  

3.3 All non-responses to either HEF’s or IER forms that have been sent out have been 
followed up with reminders. In addition comparison work with the Council Tax data 
base has also been undertaken to try and confirm electors at properties. 
 

3.4 Once the register has been published on the 1 December 2015 further work will be 
undertaken in January 2016 along similar lines to that undertaken this year to 
further maximise registration. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance (including whole life costs where applicable) 
 
In addition to the budget of £34,080 being provided by the Council, a grant of 
£50,000 was received from Government. Currently, expenditure is forecast to be 
within budget for this financial year. The Government has yet to announce what 
financial support it will be providing for the financial year 2016/17. Should this 
financial support either be removed or reduced for 2016/17, the Council does hold 
a reserve for IER of £37k. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules  
 

4.3 IER is provided for by the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 and 
the City Council follows the requirements of the Act. In addition joint guidance 
issued by the Cabinet Office and the Electoral Commission is also followed. 
 

8



5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members of the Ethics and Engagement Committee consider the contents of 
the report. 
 

 
Lead Officer: Steve Swain, Principal Democratic Officer  

Telephone (01522) 873439 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  7 DECEMBER 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT: CASES REVIEW 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide information on recent cases relating to other local authorities’ codes of 

conduct and consider their potential relevance to the Council. 
 

2. National Cases Relating to Councillor Conduct 
 

2.1 Since the removal of the Standards for England Board as part of the changes 
brought through the Localism Act 2011, the Council no longer receives a summary 
of cases reported from across the country. As a result, the cases chosen for 
consideration are drawn primarily from local government networks and media 
reports, and are summarised below.  
 

2.2 Any reports highlighted are gathered solely from information made available by the 
relevant local authorities. As cases are often considered to contain exempt 
information, there are potentially elements of the case which may not be publicly 
available. As such, members should be aware that any cases below are provided 
for the purpose of discussion and may not give the full picture in every regard. 
 

2.3 Cornwall Council 
A councillor attending a meeting of the Strategic Planning Committee used the 
following phrase: ‘I'm very fond of the old saying that if a lady says no, she means 
perhaps, if a lady says perhaps she means yes, but if a lady says yes she's no lady.’ 
The comment was made in relation to the withdrawal of a report from the committee 
meeting. The Monitoring Officer lodged a complaint regarding the councillor’s action 
suggesting that the comment potentially brought the council into disrepute, failed to 
treat others with respect, and did not promote high standards of conduct. The 
investigating officer noted that some people had interpreted the comments as 
encouraging rape, but concluded that this was not the councillor’s intention. A 
finding was made that the councillor had failed to treat others with respect and to 
promote high standards of conduct. The councillor had apologised for his actions so 
no further action was considered necessary. 
 

2.4 Henley Town Council 
In response to a comment made by another councillor, a councillor stated at a 
council meeting ‘that sounds a bit racist to me, a bit UKIP’. A member of the public 
affiliated to UKIP made a comment from the gallery regarding this. In response to 
the member of the public, the councillor called the member of public a ‘little man’ 
and made an ‘obscene gesture’ to accompany this. A complaint was lodged 
regarding this. The monitoring officer noted that the complainant was politically 
active, had not personally been called racist, and so determined that the behaviour 

11

Item No. 4



fell within the bounds of political debate. It was therefore decided to reject the 
complaint. 
 

2.5 York City Council 
A councillor who stated that an opposition councillor ‘would not make the best chair’ 
having reached that conclusion as a result of ‘confidential information’ was held not 
to have breached the code of conduct. The complaint lodged in relation to the 
comment alleged that the comments made were unsubstantiated and defamatory. 
However, the investigating officer concluded that the councillor had imparted his 
views in a calm and professional manner. In addition, there was no evidence to 
suggest the councillor was seeking to gain an advantage for a party colleague to be 
appointed to the chair. As such, it was found that no breach of the code of conduct 
had occurred. 
 

3. Potential Learning Points  
 

3.1 
 

Having regard to these complaints which have been investigated by other local 
authorities, members should consider whether any appropriate actions can be 
identified to ensure that the likelihood of any future breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct by members representing the City of Lincoln Council is limited. 
 

3.2 
 

The Ethics and Engagement Committee may wish to consider the following actions 
if any learning points are identified: 

 Issuing guidance to members and any other relevant parties on a general 
topic which presents a cause for concern with a view to potential future 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct. 

 Requesting specific training for all members or members whose individual 
status would be relevant to the particular training. 

 Proposing amendments to the Member Code of Conduct and the procedure 
for considering complaints, if improvements can be identified. 

 Any other actions falling within the remit of the Committee which might aid 
the improvement of councillors’ conduct. 

 
3.3 
 

If members are aware of further cases of broad interest from other local authorities 
in relation to ethical behaviour by councillors, details can be submitted via 
Democratic Services or raised at the meeting of the Committee for potential 
inclusion in a future report. 
 

4. Strategic Priorities  
 

4.1 The development of a fit-for-purpose council relies upon the proper conduct of 
officers and members. By considering the lessons learned from other local 
authorities the Council is better positioned to take preventative action to resolve any 
potential issues before they arise. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications  
The Ethics and Engagement Committee’s role includes the promotion and 

12



maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted members; 
this report forms a part of the work of the Committee in proactively addressing any 
matter that could detract from the reputation and behaviour of the Council or its 
councillors. 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

6.1 
 

That the Ethics and Engagement Committee note the contents of the report and 
recommend any suitable action arising from it. 

 

13



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  7 DECEMBER 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
IMPROVING MEMBER DEVELOPMENT ATTENDANCE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 At the meeting of 21 September 2015, the Committee considered a report 

providing one of the regular updates regarding the operation of member 
development in 2015/16. During the discussion of the report, members debated 
the matter of attendance levels at member development events and requested a 
report exploring options for increasing the number of members benefiting from 
member development. 
 

2. Member Development Attendance Levels 
 

2.1 Attendance rates at member development events are a cause for concern at many 
local authorities. Officers are understandably keen to ensure that any training is 
attended by as high a proportion of an authority’s members as possible. 
Maximising attendance ensures that knowledge and skills are spread as widely as 
possible through a council while also delivering maximum value for money. 
 

2.2 The mean attendance rate at the Council’s member development events during 
2015/16 has been 49%. This level is not significantly different from typical 
attendance rates in previous years. As members noted at the previous meeting of 
the Committee, attendance levels do vary considerably between councillors with 
some members attending most events and others often having to send apologies 
for non-attendance. 
 

3. Options for Improving Attendance 
 

3.1 
 

As requested by members, a list of potential options for improving member 
development attendance is outlined below. It should be noted that a number of 
these options have been trialled in the past and have been included to ensure 
members have the full range of options available for consideration. 
 

3.2 
 

E-Learning 
The Council has had access to an e-learning system hosted by the Learning Pool 
for a number of years. The system is principally used by the Human Resources 
and Work-Based Learning teams to provide online training to officers. On 11 
March 2013, the Committee endorsed diverting funding from providing councillor 
training via e-learning in order to concentrate on other forms of training. E-learning 
systems tend to be interactive websites combining guidance on the relevant topic 
with short quizzes. However, there is limited scope for interaction with other 
learners or trainers using an e-learning system and the creation and updating of e-

15

Item No. 5



learning packages can be more time-consuming for officers than delivering training 
in person. 
 

3.3 
 

Decreasing the Number of Events 
In recent years, the annual timetable of meetings has normally included one 
provisional evening member development event each month. However, while 
some months’ training slots are not used each year, in other months multiple 
events are held. This inevitably places a strain upon members who will often have 
considerable demands upon their time from other areas of life or Council business.  
 
If members were minded to reduce the number of evening member development 
events in order to focus on a few key events, it would be possible to refer any 
suggested topics to the Leader or other elected members to determine whether 
they justified holding a separate session. 
 
In particular, members may wish to consider encouraging officers to circulate 
briefing notes in place of holding member development events. This would allow 
information to be disseminated to a wider group of councillors while also limiting 
the impact upon members’ time. 
 

3.4 Increasing the Relevance of Events 
As an addition to the option outlined above allowing members to reject or amend 
proposed member development events, members may wish to be more proactive 
in ensuring that events are sufficiently relevant to their role. While officers do 
regularly seek input from both this committee and the wider membership regarding 
the planning of member development events, at present the overwhelming 
majority of member development events are arranged as a result of officer rather 
than member requests. As such, there is considerable scope for member 
development events to be misaligned with the topics in which members have the 
greatest interest. 
 

3.5 Political Group Whipping 
All of the Council’s councillors are currently members of a political group. In recent 
years the Council has not had a significant number of members who are not 
members of political groups. As such, enforcement of attendance continues to be 
a feasible option at the political whipping level.  
 
As members operate on a political level it remains difficult and often inappropriate 
for officers to seek to direct members in terms of their day-to-day conduct, 
including attendance rates. Group whipping therefore presents an opportunity for 
members to be self-policing in this regard. However, group whipping evidently 
varies from party-to-party. Any members who are not attached to a political party 
or who are aligned to a group of independent councillors will be less likely to be 
effectively controlled by any other members. 
 

3.6 Mandatory Training 
By longstanding custom, members taking part in quasi-regulatory functions under 
the Licensing or Planning Committees have to receive training on an annual basis 
before taking part in any decisions. This provision has also been extended in the 
past to similar activities such as participating in the Personnel Appeals Panel. 
However, any ‘mandatory’ training can only be effectively enforced through 
Council’s appointments to committees or political whipping. Councillors and 

16



political groups have legal rights to take part in Council business which cannot be 
overridden lightly.  
 
As such, while it is open to Council to incorporate further provisions in relation to 
requiring attendance at a wider range of training events, this will only be as 
effective as councillors’ willingness to take action against other elected members 
who do not attend. If this were extended and not effectively enforced there is a risk 
that attendance at current ‘mandatory’ training would be adversely affected if 
members felt that all ‘mandatory’ training had become optional.  
 

3.7 Publishing Attendance Data 
The Ethics & Engagement Committee previously considered the publication of 
attendance information showing the proportion of member development events 
attended by councillors. However, members subsequently resolved that such a 
system did not give an accurate reflection of councillors’ commitment to attending 
training. As such, while attendance information continues to be recorded and is 
available on the Council’s intranet site, the information is no longer automatically 
published. 
 

3.8 Incentivising Attendance 
Members have previously discussed whether a return to a system of payment for 
attending events could be considered. As members may be aware, local authority 
members were once paid an attendance allowance taking account of the number 
of meetings which they attended. The Council currently pays all members a basic 
allowance which is supplemented by a special responsibility allowance for those 
members undertaking additional specific duties. The rates for these allowances 
are determined by Council after having regard to the recommendations of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel.  
 

3.9 An allowance system based upon attendance could increase the Council’s costs at 
a time of considerable budgetary pressures and would be likely to draw adverse 
comment from the public. There is also a risk that member development 
attendance would increase as a result of members attending for the incentive 
rather than through a genuine interest in the event. This would potentially cause 
problems in limiting access to training with a specified capacity and could inhibit 
the value of training if members in attendance were not fully engaged with the 
topic. In addition such a scheme would be likely to be unlawful in view of the 
Council’s responsibility to pay a single basic rate allowance to all members and 
the limited roles for which a special responsibility allowance can be paid. 
 

3.10 Repeating Sessions at Different Times 
Councillors evidently have a considerable number of commitments both within and 
outside their role as councillors. As the majority of member development events 
are, in common with committee meetings, held in the evening this can present 
members with difficulties in attending if the date of the event conflicts with political, 
work or personal commitments. As such, for a small number of training sessions 
(usually relating to the Member Code of Conduct, Planning Committee, or 
Licensing Committee) officers supplement the main training event with separate 
events arranged in consultation with members who were unable to attend the 
initial session. 
 
While this arrangement is undoubtedly a good way to increase attendance rates 

17



and the dissemination of information to all members, it is also time-consuming for 
officers in both arranging and then conducting additional training sessions. Any 
training provided by external trainers would also lead to additional costs if holding 
additional events. As such, there are clear disadvantages in extending the number 
of repeat training sessions which should be borne in mind. 
 

3.11 Survey Members for Further Views 
At present members are not requested to provide any additional information 
regarding why they have not been able to attend an event. While officers may be 
aware anecdotally as to why someone has been unable to attend, there has been 
no systematic attempt to record this either on an ongoing or a one-off basis. As 
such, there would be scope to ask members for this information either through a 
survey or by contacting members before or after an event has been held. While 
the latter option may prove unpopular with members and consume officer time on 
an ongoing basis, a single survey of members would be a less cumbersome way 
to gather the same information. There would also evidently be scope within any 
questionnaire to ask other questions in relation to the Council’s provision of 
member development opportunities. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 That members consider the options outlined within the report for improving 
attendance at member development events and offer views regarding the 
suitability of these and any other options. 
 

 

18



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  7 DECEMBER 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To propose a number of changes relating to the Council’s Member Code of 

Conduct. 
 

2. Member Code of Conduct 
 

2.1 The Council’s Member Code of Conduct was substantially amended in accordance 
with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011. The Localism Act 2011 required local 
authorities to adopt a Member Code of Conduct incorporating the principles of 
public life (the ‘Nolan Principles’). However, local authorities were empowered to 
otherwise amend their codes of conduct in accordance with local circumstances and 
preference. 
 

2.2 The Council’s Member Code of Conduct was last amended on 11 March 2013 to 
incorporate changes made to the principles of public life. Its principal provisions 
remain in accordance with the Member Code of Conduct initially adopted following 
the commencement of the relevant provisions within the Localism Act 2011. 
 

3. Proposed Amendments 
 

3.1 
 

As part of a review undertaken by officers into the operation of the Member Code of 
Conduct, a number of areas have been identified in which changes could be made 
in order to simplify and clarify aspects of the Member Code of Conduct. These 
changes are not considered to make significant changes to the operation of the 
existing Member Code of Conduct. 
 

3.2 
 

A revised copy of the Member Code of Conduct incorporating the proposed 
changes has been attached as Appendix A. The revisions made are as follows: 
 

 Changes to paragraph numbering and references to ensure clarity and 
consistency. 

 Changes to incorporate clarificatory wording in relation to non-participation 
for pecuniary interests, in accordance with the original model code adopted 
by the Council. 

 Changes to formatting, particularly in paragraph 5.2, to ensure the section’s 
meaning is clear. 

 
3.3 
 

It is further recommended that the Council’s assessment criteria (Appendix B), 
complaints form (Appendix C), and Hearings Sub-Committee Procedure  
(Appendix D) be incorporated within the Constitution in order to ensure councillors 

19

Item No. 6



and members of the public are able to refer more easily to documents relevant to 
the making and determination of a complaint. 
  

3.4 
 

The attached Member Code of Conduct complaint form has also been amended 
from that originally approved. The amendments are proposed in order to make the 
form easier to complete and to be submissible via email. 
 

3.5 
 

At present the Monitoring Officer and the Ethics and Engagement Committee are 
empowered to offer dispensations to members in relation to their Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests. These dispensations can allow members to take part in the 
debate and voting on matters from which they would otherwise be excluded. Having 
considered the limited number of dispensations given to date it is considered that it 
would be appropriate to extend the current powers in relation to Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests to apply to Personal and Pecuniary interests.  
 

3.6 Dispensations granted to date have principally related to business in which there is 
a risk either that a meeting would cease to be quorate or a member would be 
excluded from a significant debate as a result of a relatively minor Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest. While Personal and Pecuniary Interests are less likely to exclude 
members as a result of relatively minor interests, it is considered that it would be 
prudent to extend similar powers in relation to dispensations. Such powers would be 
subject to the same level of oversight and have not been proposed in relation to any 
particular member’s interest. Rather, it is recommended to approve this additional 
power in order to provide an additional safeguard to allow the Council to transact its 
business in an efficient manner. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members consider the proposed changes. 
 

5.2 
 

That Council be recommended to approve the following changes to the Constitution: 
 

 Revisions to the Member Code of Conduct. 

 The incorporation of the assessment criteria, complaints form, and Hearings 
Sub-Committee Procedure in relation to complaints under the Member Code 
of Conduct. 

 The extension of any powers currently held by the Ethics & Engagement 
Committee or the Monitoring Officer to grant dispensations in relation to 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests also to be applicable to personal and 
pecuniary interests. 

 
 

20



APPENDIX A 

Code of Conduct for Members 
 
1.0 Application 
 
1.1 This code applies to you whenever you are acting in your capacity as a member of 

this authority and it is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 
 
1.2 You are a representative of this authority and the public will view you as such 

therefore your actions impact on how the authority as a whole is viewed and your 
actions can have both positive and negative impacts on the authority. 

 
1.3 The Code is based upon the ‘Nolan Principles – the seven principles of public life’ 

which are set out as Appendix 1. 
 
2.0 Interpretation 
 
2.1 In this Code –  
 

“meeting” means any meeting of:  
 

(a) the authority; 
 

(b) the executive of the authority; 
 

(c) any of the authority’s or its executive’s committees, sub-committees, joint 
committees, joint sub-committees, or area committees; 

 
whether or not the press and public are excluded from the meeting in question by 
virtue of a resolution of members. 
 
“member” includes a co-opted member and an appointed member. 

 
3.0 General Conduct 
 
When acting in your role as a member of the authority: 

 
3.1 Do treat others with respect and not bully any person 

 
3.2 Do provide leadership to the authority by personal example 

 
3.3 Do not conduct yourself in a manner which is likely to bring the authority into 

disrepute 

 

3.4 Do use your position as a member in the public interest and not for personal 
advantage 

 

3.5 Do not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or 
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be 
aware, is of a confidential nature, except where: 

 
(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

 
(ii) you are required by law to do so 

21



APPENDIX A 

 

(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or 

 
(iv) the disclosure is: 

 
a. reasonable and in the public interest 

 
b. made in good faith and in compliance with the 

reasonable requirements of the authority; and 
 

c. you have consulted with the Monitoring Officer prior 
to its release if appropriate 

 
3.6 Do not prevent another person from gaining access to information to which 

that person is entitled to by law. 
 

3.7 When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the authority: 
 
3.7.1.1 Do act in accordance with the authority’s reasonable 

requirements including the requirements of the authority’s 
ICT policy, copies of which have been provided to you and 
you are deemed to have read; 
 

3.7.1.2 Do make sure that such resources are not used improperly 
for political purposes (including party political purposes); 
and 

 
3.7.1.3 Do have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of 

Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
4.0 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
You must –  
 

4.1 comply with the statutory requirements to register, disclose and withdraw from 
participating in respect of any matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. The statutory requirements with regards to disclosable pecuniary 
interests are attached as Appendix 2 to this code. 

 
4.2 ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and notify the Monitoring 

Officer in writing within 28 days of becoming aware of any change in respect of 
your disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
4.3 make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any disclosable 

pecuniary interest at any meeting at which you are present at which an item or 
business affects or relates to the subject matter of that interest is under 
consideration, at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon 
as the interest becomes apparent 

 
5.0  Other Interests 
 

22



APPENDIX A 

5.1  You must, within 28 days of: 
 

(a) this Code being adopted by or applied to your authority; or 
 
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later), 
notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your other personal 
interests, where they fall within the following descriptions, for inclusion in the 
register of interests. 

 
5.2 You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where either it relates 

to or is likely to affect: 
 
(i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 

 
(ii) any body— 

 
(aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 
 
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or 

 
(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or trade union),  

 
of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management; 

 
(iii) any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry 
with it a right for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive 
income. 
 

5.3  You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to any 
interest registered under paragraph 5.1, notify the Monitoring Officer of the details of 
that new interest or change. 

 
6.0  Disclosure of interests 
 
6.1 Subject to paragraphs 6.2 to 6.5, where you have a personal interest described in 

paragraphs 5.2 or 6.2 in any business of your authority, and where you are aware or 
ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest, and you 
attend a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must 
disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the 
commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. 

 
6.2 (A) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority 
 

(i) where a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be 
regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-
being or financial position of a relevant person to a greater extent than 
the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of 
the electoral division or ward, as the case may be, affected by the 
decision, or 
 

(ii)  it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests you have registered 
as a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

23



APPENDIX A 

(B) In paragraph 6.2(A), a relevant person is: 
 

(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 
association; or 
 
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm 
in which they are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
 
(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a 
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
(d) any body of a type described in paragraph 5.2. 

 
6.3 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority which relates to 

or is likely to affect a person described in paragraph 5.1(i) or (ii)(aa) you need only 
disclose to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest when you address 
the meeting on that business. 

 
6.4 Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 8, sensitive 

information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s register of members’ 
interests, you must indicate to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but 
need not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting. 

 
6.5 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have 

made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must ensure that any 
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest. 

 
7.0  Register of interests 
 
7.1 Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of 

interests. A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be 
published on the authority’s website. 

 
8.0  Sensitive interests 
 
8.1 Where you consider that disclosure of the details an interest could lead to you, or a 

person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the 
Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the 
register that are made available for inspection and any published version of the 
register will exclude details of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the 
details of which are withheld. 

 
9.0  Non-participation in case of pecuniary interest 
 
9.1 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority you also have a 

pecuniary interest in that business where the interest is one which a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant 
that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where that 
business— 

 
(a) affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body 
described in paragraphs 5.2 or 6.2;or 
 

24



APPENDIX A 

(b) relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration in relation to you or any person or body described in paragraphs 
5.2 or 6.2. 

 
9.2 Subject to paragraphs 9.3 and 9.4, where you have a pecuniary interest in any 

business of your authority— 
 

a) You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting and 
should leave the room during consideration of the relevant matter. 

 
(b) You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  
 
(c) If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the 
meeting.  
 
(d) If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days. In addition this Code and Standing Orders requires you to leave the 
room where the meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 

9.3 Where you have a pecuniary interest in any business of your authority, you may 
attend a meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering 
questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory 
right or otherwise and you leave the room where the meeting is held immediately 
after making representations, answering questions or giving evidence.  

 
9.4.  Subject to you disclosing the interest at the meeting, you may attend a meeting and 

vote on a matter where you have a pecuniary interest that relates to the functions of 
your authority in respect of:  

 
(i) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those 

functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease;  
 

(ii) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you 
are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a 
parent governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school 
which the child attends;  

 

(iii) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 
and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to 
the receipt of, such pay;  

 

(iv) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;  

 
(v) any ceremonial honour given to members; and  

 

(vi) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992. 

 
9.5.  Where, as an executive member, you may discharge a function alone, and you 

become aware of a pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with, or to be dealt with 
by you, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 

25



APPENDIX A 

steps or further steps in the matter, or seek improperly to influence a decision about 
the matter. 

 
10.0  Interests arising in relation to scrutiny committees 
 
10.1 In relation to any business before a scrutiny committee of the authority (or of a sub-

committee of such a committee) where- 
 

10.1.1 That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or 
not) or action taken by your authority’s executive or another of your 
authority’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-
committees; and 

 
10.1.2 At the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a 

member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee 
or joint sub-committee mentioned in paragraph 10.1.1 and you were 
present when that decision was made or action was taken; 

 
                      Or 
 

10.1.3 that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) 
or action taken by you (whether by virtue of the Council’s constitution 
or under delegated authority from the Leader); 

 
You may attend a meeting of the scrutiny committee of your local 
authority or of a sub-committee of such a committee but only for the 
purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise. 

 
11.0 Gifts and Hospitality 
 
11.1    You must within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of  any 
gift,   benefit or hospitality with a value of in excess of £50 which you  have accepted as 
a member from any person  or body other than the  authority 
 
11.2 The Monitoring Officer will place your notification on a public register of gifts and 

hospitality 
 
11.3 This duty to notify the Monitoring Officer does not apply where the gift, benefit or 

hospitality comes within any description approved by the authority for this purpose. 

  

26



APPENDIX A 

APPENDIX  1 
 
 

 
THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 
 
SELFLESSNESS 
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
 
INTEGRITY 
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not 
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 
 
OBJECTIVITY 
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 
 
OPENNESS 
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons 
for so doing. 
 
HONESTY 
Holders of public office should be truthful. 
 
LEADERSHIP 
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occurs. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



APPENDIX A 

Appendix 2 
 

 
Disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
This note explains the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 (Ss 29-34) and The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, in relation to disclosable 
pecuniary interests. 
 
These provisions are enforced by criminal sanction.  
 
 
1 Notification of disclosable pecuniary interests 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, you must notify the Monitoring 
Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests’. 
 
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means 
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person 
with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) within the following descriptions: 
(In the extracts from the Regulations below, ‘M’ means you and ‘relevant person’ means you 
and your partner, as above) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession 
or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by M in carrying 
out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of M. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the 
relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to 
be provided or works are to be executed; 
and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) 
to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 
 

28



APPENDIX A 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; 
and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a 
body where— 
(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of 
the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

 
 

These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions; 

 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the 
relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a 
director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and 
provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not 
carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a 
notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the 
Act; 

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act; 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 

 
2 Register of interests 

29



APPENDIX A 

Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of interests. 
A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the 
authority’s website. 
 
3 Sensitive interests 
Where you consider that disclosure of the details of a disclosable pecuniary interest could 
lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and 
the Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the register 
that are made available for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude 
details of the interest, but may state that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, the 
details of which are withheld under Section 32(2). 
 
4 Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
A)   If you are present at a meeting of the authority, or any committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, 

1. You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting. 
2. You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 
3. If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting. 
4. If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, 

you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 
 

 Note: In addition, Standing Orders require you to leave the room where the meeting is held 
while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
B)   Where an executive member may discharge a function alone and becomes aware of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with or to be dealt with by her/him, the 
executive member must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 
steps or further steps in the matter. 
 
5 Dispensations 
The authority may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, to enable you 
to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 
6 Offences 
It is a criminal offence to 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 
days of election 

 Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the register 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary interest 
that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting 

 Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

 As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring Officer 
within 28 days of the interest. 

 Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in notifying 
the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in disclosing such interest 
to a meeting 
 

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the 
standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years. 

 

30



APPENDIX B 

 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL ASSESSMENT AND REVIEW OF 
COMPLAINTS OF BREACHES OF THE 

MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
 

CRITERIA, GUIDANCE AND PROCEDURE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

31



APPENDIX B 

1.0 PRE- ASSESSMENT 
 
1.1 When a written complaint has been received, the Monitoring Officer in 
consultation with the independent person, will; 
 
1.2  Determine whether the complaint should be investigated; whether to refer the 
decision on investigation to the Assessment Sub-Committee; or whether another 
course of action is appropriate, including seeking local resolution or to take no action 
at all.  
 
1.3 If a complaint is raised with the Monitoring Officer verbally, the Monitoring 
Officer should ask the complainant whether they want to formally put the matter in 
writing. If the complainant does not want to do this then the Monitoring Officer should 
consider options for informal resolution to satisfy the complaint. 
 
1.4 Once the Monitoring Officer has determined that the complaint should be 
investigated, he/she will acknowledge receipt of the complaint and the member who 
the allegation is made against will be informed that a complaint has been made 
against them alleging a breach of the member code of conduct. 
 
1.5 Before any investigation of the complaint begins, the Monitoring Officer and 
the Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee must be satisfied that the 
complaint meets the following tests: - 
 

 It is a complaint against a named member of the Council 
 

 The named member was in office at the time of the alleged conduct and 
acting in their official capacity 

 

 The complaint if substantiated would be a breach of the member code of 
conduct in force at the relevant time 

 
1.6 If the complaint fails one or more of these tests it cannot be investigated as a 
breach of the code and the complainant must be informed that no further action will 
be taken in respect of the complaint. 
 
2.0 ASSESSMENT CRITERIA 
 
2.1 The following criteria have been developed for the Monitoring Officer and the 
Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee to assess new complaints against 
and decide what action, if any to take. 
 
2.2  Information 
 
Has the complainant submitted enough information to satisfy the Monitoring Officer 
that the complaint should be referred for investigation or other action? 
 
The complainant must provide sufficient information to enable the Monitoring Officer 
and the Independent Person to decide whether or not there is  prima facie evidence 
of a breach of the Member Code of Conduct. If insufficient information has been 

32



APPENDIX B 

provided to make a decision, the matter will not normally be  referred for 
investigation or other action. 
 
2.3  Length of time 
 
Is the complaint about something that happened so long ago that there would be 
little benefit in taking action now? 
 
The Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee 
should have regard to the length of time that has elapsed since the alleged conduct 
occurred. It will not normally investigate or pursue other action where the alleged 
conduct took place more than 6 months prior to the date of the complaint. However if 
there are exceptional circumstances (e.g. where the conduct relates to a pattern of 
behaviour which has recently been repeated) events or incidents which are more 
than 6 months old could be considered. 
 
2.4  Seriousness of the Complaint 
 
Does the complaint appear to be simply malicious, politically motivated, a repeated 
complaint  or ‘tit- for-tat? 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee will not 
consider complaints or make a decision to refer matters for investigation, which they 
believe to be malicious, vexatious, trivial, politically motivated, a repeated complaint, 
or tit-for-tat. 
 
2.5  Public Interest 
 
Is it in the public interest to refer a matter for investigation? 
 
The Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee will 
determine whether the public interest would be served by referring a complaint for 
investigation or for any other action in cases where the subject matter has died, 
resigned or is seriously ill. Similarly, if the member has offered an apology or other 
remedial action the Monitoring Officer may decide that it is appropriate to take no 
further action. In making a decision to investigate, the Monitoring Officer should also 
consider whether the complaint is serious enough to justify the resources required to 
investigate. 
 
2.6  Other Investigations 
 
Has the complaint already been the subject of an investigation or other action 
relating to the Code of Conduct, or has the complaint been the subject of an 
investigation by other regulatory authorities? 
 
If the complaint has already been the subject of an investigation or other action 
relating to the Member Code of Conduct, or the subject of investigation by another 
regulatory authority, it is unlikely that it will be referred for investigation by the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 

33



APPENDIX B 

2.7  Anonymous Complaints 
 
Has the complaint been made anonymously? 
 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Person/ Assessment Sub-Committee will 
not normally make a decision to consider anonymous complaints unless there is 
additional independent documentary evidence to support the complaint. 
 
2.8  Multiple Complaints 
 
It is not uncommon for one event or incident to give rise to similar complaints from a 
number of different complainants. Wherever possible, these complaints will be 
considered at the same meeting by the Monitoring Officer and Independent Person/ 
Assessment Sub-Committee. 
 
2.9  Criminal Investigations 
 
If a complaint made against a member is also subject to a police investigation, the 
Monitoring Officer and Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee should still 
investigate the facts as far as they are able to ascertain whether there has been a 
breach of the code of conduct. 
 
3.0  CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
3.1 As a matter of fairness and natural justice, a member should normally be told 
that a complaint has been made against them alleging a breach of the code of 
conduct, who has made the complaint and what this relates to. However, there may 
be cases where the complainant requests that his or her identity is withheld from the 
member. Such requests should only be granted in exceptional circumstances, such 
as: - 
 

 the complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that they or their family 
will be at risk of physical harm if their identity is revealed. 

 The complainant is an officer who works with the member and they would 
have concerns of any consequence to their employment if their identity is 
revealed 

 The complainant suffers from a serious health condition which might 
adversely be affected if their identity is revealed.  

 
4.0  Withdrawing Complaints 
 
4.1 A complainant may ask to withdraw their complaint before the Monitoring Officer 
and Independent Person/Assessment Sub-Committee has made a decision on it. 
The Monitoring Officer and Independent Person should consider the following when 
deciding whether to grant the request: - 
 

 Does the public interest in pursuing the complaint outweigh the private 
interest of withdrawing it? 

 Could action, such as an investigation, be properly carried out without the 
participation of the complainant? 

34



APPENDIX B 

 Is there a reason why the complainant has been asked to withdraw the 
complaint (e.g. is there any pressure/intimidation to withdraw the complaint 
from the member or any colleagues)? 

 
5.0  ASSESSMENT DECISIONS 
 
5.1 The Monitoring Officer or Assessment Sub-Committee should complete its initial 
assessment of an allegation within an average of 20 working days and to reach a 
decision on what should happen with the complaint. 
 
5.2 The Monitoring Officer or Assessment Sub-Committee is required to reach one of 
the three following decisions on a complaint in relation to the Code of Conduct: 
 

 Refer the complaint for investigation 
 

 Take ‘other action’ including seeking local resolution 
 

 Take no action 
 
6.0  THE DECISION NOTICE 
 
6.1 The Monitoring Officer/Assessment Sub – Committee is required to produce a 
Decision Notice which requires a written summary detailing: - 
 

 the main points considered during its deliberations 

 its conclusions in respect of the complaint 

 the reasons for its conclusions 
 
6.2 The Decision Notice should give the name of the member who is the subject of 
the allegation and details of the allegation unless doing so is not in the public interest 
or would prejudice any separate or subsequent investigation. 
 
6.3  The Decision Notice will be sent to the member and the complainant unless 
there is a significant risk that by sending it to the member the complainant or any 
potential witnesses will be intimidated by the subject member or any evidence will be 
compromised or destroyed. 
 
6.4 The Decision Notice should be issued as soon as possible after the Monitoring 
Officer/ Assessment Sub-Committee meeting and ideally within 5 working days. 
 
6.5 The Decision Notice shall be made publicly available (e.g. at Council offices and 
on the Council’s website) for a period of 6 years. 
 
 
7.0  DECISION TO TAKE NO ACTION 
 
7.1 The Monitoring Officer/Assessment Sub-Committee can decide that no action is 
required in respect of a complaint. For example this could be because the Monitoring 
Officer/Assessment Sub-Commitee does not consider that the complaint is 

35



APPENDIX B 

sufficiently serious to warrant any action. Alternatively it could be because of the 
length of time that has elapsed since the allegation. 
 
7.2 The decision reached by the Monitoring Officer/Assessment Sub-Committee and 
the reasons for it should adhere to the assessment criteria set out in this document. 
If the Monitoring Officer has made the decision this must be reported to the 
Standards Committee. 
 
7.3 As soon as possible after making the decision, and ideally within 5 working days, 
the Monitoring Officer/Assessment Sub-Committee must give written notice of that 
decision to the complainant and the member, summarising the complaint and setting 
out clearly the reasons for the decision to take no action. 
 
7.4 It is important to note that where no potential breach of the Code of Conduct is 
disclosed by the complaint, no matter what its source or whoever the member was, 
no action can be taken by the Standards Committee in respect of it. The matter of 
referral for investigation or other action does not arise. 
 
 
 
 

36



APPENDIX C 

Councillor Complaint Form, Page 1 of 3 
 

 
MAKING A COMPLAINT ABOUT A COUNCILLOR 

 
The City of Lincoln Council is committed to maintaining high standards of conduct by 
its councillors and officers. This form is intended to provide an opportunity for any 
person to report concerns that a councillor’s conduct may have fallen below the 
expected standards. If your concern relates to an alleged criminal matter you should 
consider contacting the police regarding your concerns.  
 
If you require any guidance or assistance in completing this form, please contact 
Democratic Services at the City of Lincoln Council, either by emailing 
democraticservices@lincoln.gov.uk, visiting City Hall, or by calling 01522 873533. 
 
1. Your Contact Details 
 

Title: Click here to 

enter text. 
Name: Click here to enter text. 

Address: Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

Email address: Click here to enter text. 

Home telephone: Click here to enter text. Mobile telephone: Click here to enter text. 

 
 
2. Do you need to register this complaint anonymously? 
 

Yes ☐  No ☐ 

 
Please note that it may be necessary to disclose some of your personal details to 
those affected by the complaint, including the relevant councillor. These details will 
not include your telephone number or email address unless you explicitly consent to 
this. However, it may be necessary to share your name and address in order for the 
complaint to be properly investigated. As such, if it is not possible to handle your 
complaint anonymously we will contact you to consider suitable options, which may 
include withdrawing or rejecting your complaint. 
 
 
3. If you answered yes to Question 2, please specify why in the box below: 
 
Click here to enter text. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37

mailto:democraticservices@lincoln.gov.uk


APPENDIX C 

Councillor Complaint Form, Page 2 of 3 
 

4. Which councillors are the subject of your complaint? 
 

Councillor Name(s): Click here to enter text. 

 
If you are unsure of the identity of the councillor(s) you are complaining about, you 
may find it useful to view pictures of our councillors by clicking here (if using a 
computer) or by contacting Democratic Services for advice. 
 
 
5. What has caused your complaint? 
 
Click here to enter text. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In order for us to investigate this complaint properly, please try to include the 
following information if it is relevant to your complaint: 
 

 Which parts of the Member Code of Conduct have been breached (the Code 
can be viewed on our website or by request at City Hall) 

 The times and dates on which any incidents occurred 

 The names of any witnesses who may have observed any incidents 

 The specific actions of the councillor or any other involved parties 

 The words used by you or the councillor 

 Whether anything in the incident relates particularly to a ‘protected 
characteristic’, such as your gender, race, or a disability 

 
If you need additional space please continue on a separate sheet. You can also 
submit any photographs or other relevant items via Democratic Services. 

38

http://democratic.lincoln.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1


APPENDIX C 

Councillor Complaint Form, Page 3 of 3 
 

 
6. What outcome do you hope to achieve from your complaint? 
 
Click here to enter text. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Please note that the principal purpose of submitting a complaint against a councillor 
is to ensure the appropriate behaviour of councillors. It will not normally be 
appropriate or possible to provide compensation to a someone submitting a 
complaint. However, remedies could include an apology from the relevant councillor 
or for the councillor to receive training in behaving more suitably in future. 
 
7. Signature 
 
Please sign and date below to confirm that the information provided above is true to 
the best of your knowledge. If submitting the form by email, please complete your 
name and the date below. 
 
Name: Click here to enter text.    Date: Click here to enter text.  
 
 
What will happen next? 
 
Your complaint will be submitted to the City of Lincoln Council’s Monitoring Officer. 
The Monitoring Officer will consider the complaint and determine whether it requires 
investigation. The Monitoring Officer may consult an Independent Person regarding 
your complaint in order to reach a suitable outcome. Your complaint may then be 
resolved by the Monitoring Officer or referred to a separate group of councillors for 
consideration. 
 
You will be advised of the outcome of your complaint when one has been reached 
and the Monitoring Officer will also update you during the course of any investigation 
regarding any progress if this is appropriate and necessary. 
 
 
 

39



This page is intentionally blank.



APPENDIX D 

HEARING SUB-COMMITTEE 
OUTINE PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS PANEL (CONTESTED) 

 
1 Preliminary Procedural Issues 

 
a. Introductions 
b. Declarations of Interests 
c. To consider any requests for the exclusion of the Press and Public 

 
2 Monitoring Officer (or his/her representative) to present summary of the 

case and refer to outcome of any pre-hearing process. 
3 Investigating Officer to present the report and call such witnesses 

(including the complainant) as he/she considers necessary, and make 
representations to substantiate his/her conclusions within the report. 

4 The Sub-Committee to raise any issues or clarify any matters with the 
Investigating Officers report and to question and clarify matters with any of 
the witnesses called. 

5 The member to raise any issues or clarify any matters with the 
Investigating Officers report and to question and clarify matters with any of 
the witnesses called 

6 The member responds to the investigation report, makes representations 
and calls such witnesses as he/she considers necessary. 

7 The investigation officer to raise any issues, question or clarify any matters 
with the member and any witnesses called. 

8 The subcommittee to raise any issues, question or clarify any matters with 
the member and any witnesses called. 

9 Views of the Independent Person sought. 
10 The Sub-Committee then retires along with the Monitoring Officer to 

determine whether there has been a breach of the code of conduct. 
11 The Sub-Committee will either return to the Hearing to report the decision 

or (in more complex cases) the decision will be reported back by the 
Principal Democratic Officer. 

 
Action to be taken 
 

12 Monitoring Officer (or his/her representative) to outline possible sanctions 
13 Member to respond with any mitigation 
14 Views of Independent Person sought 
15 Sanction (if any) given 

  
 

41



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  7 DECEMBER 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
A COUNCILLOR'S GUIDE TO INTERESTS 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To request members’ comments on a proposed guide for elected members giving 

information relating to the declaration of interests and other relevant matters. 
 

2. A Councillor’s Guide to Interests 
 

2.1 Elected members have a number of ethical and legal considerations to make when 
taking part in Council business. A number of different factors need to be considered, 
which can be established at a local level, in national legislation, or as a result of 
cases considered by courts. It can be challenging for members to be aware of all of 
the factors affecting the general requirements upon them and their participation in 
Council business. 
 

2.2 Officers have therefore produced the attached Councillor’s Guide to Interests 
(Appendix A), which is specific to the Council’s governance arrangements. The 
guide includes reference to: 
 

 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Dispensations agreed in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Personal and Pecuniary Interests 

 Gifts and Hospitality 

 Council Tax 

 Bias 

 Predetermination 
 

2.3 In order to be an effective guide it has been necessary to summarise each of the 
relevant topics. As a result, there are undoubtedly nuances and areas which cannot 
be addressed without making the guide so detailed as to undermine its essential 
purpose. As such, the guide is intended to act as a starting point for members, 
offering general principles which they can consider before seeking any further 
specific guidance if required. 
 

2.4 As part of the Committee’s role in promoting high standards of conduct by the 
Council’s members, it is requested to consider the guide and offer comments upon 
it. In particular, members are asked to consider whether the contents and examples 
offered in the guide are suitably clear and as easily understood as possible. 
 
 
 

43

Item No. 7



3. Organisational Impacts  
 

3.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

3.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. Members remain 
ultimately responsible for their own behaviour. However, failures to behave in a 
legal and ethical manner can undermine the public’s trust in the Council and also 
jeopardise the legitimacy of decisions taken. 
 

4. Recommendation  
 

4.1 
 

That members consider the contents of the Councillor’s Guide to Interests and 
make any relevant comments or recommendations for changes. 
 

4.2 
 

That members recommend the document be circulated for the attention of all 
elected members. 
 

 

44



 
A Councillor’s Guide to Interests 

 
 

As a councillor you will take part in decisions which can have very 

significant impacts on communities, business, and residents. As a result 
of this, it is crucial that councillors are seen to act in a fair and honest 

manner. The law surrounding decision making by councillors has therefore 
developed a number of different tests to assess whether a councillor 

should be allowed to take part in making a decision. 
 

This guide is intended to give you the basic rules surrounding each kind of 
interest you might have in the Council’s business, along with practical 

examples of when you might or might not have an interest. All councillors 
need to be continually aware that they may have an interest in an item 

and of their responsibility to act accordingly. 

 
If you have any doubts over any aspect of this, please contact Democratic 

Services for advice as soon as you become aware of a potential interest. 
While advice can be given at meetings, seeking advice prior to a meeting 

is preferable to be sure thorough and informed advice can be given. 
 

  

APPENDIX A 

45



Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) are defined in legislation and affect 
all councillors. All councillors are required by law to make a written 

declaration of any DPIs which they or their partner have regarding certain 
elements of the following topics: 

 
 Employment, office, trade, profession  Licences 

 Sponsorship  Corporate tenancies 
 Contracts  Securities 

 Land  
 

When you become a councillor you must complete a register of interests 

form within 28 days listing any relevant interest. This form must be 
amended within 28 days following any change to these interests during 

your term of office. 
 

If any of the items you have disclosed is 
relevant to the business you are 

considering as a councillor you must 
declare that interest to the meeting. 

Having declared the interest you will 
have to leave the room during the 

discussion of the item and not take part 
in any vote. 

 
The failure to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest can be a criminal 

offence leading to a prison sentence or a fine. 

 

 

Dispensations 

It is possible to apply to the Ethics & Engagement Committee for a 

dispensation to allow you to take part in a decision regardless of having a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. You would still need to disclose the 

existence of that interest to the meeting, but could then make clear that 
you have a dispensation in relation to the relevant item. A number of 

dispensations affecting all councillors have already been agreed as 
follows: 

 

Example 

Cllr Kitson is an Executive 
member considering a 

proposal to enter into a 
contract with one of her 

employer’s competitors. Cllr 
Kitson should declare a DPI 

and leave the meeting. 

Example 

Cllr Malkmus is a doctor in the oncology department at the local hospital 
and sits on the Council’s Planning Committee. An application is being 

considered for the extension of the local hospital’s maternity ward. Cllr 
Malkmus should be able to participate in the decision if her employer is 
sufficiently large that the decision is unlikely to impact upon her. 

46



Dispensation Given                      Expiry  

Date 

In relation to the following areas of business: 

 
 Housing, where a member is a tenant of the 

authority, provided that those functions do not relate 

particularly to the member’s tenancy or lease 
 Statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social 

Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where 
a member is in receipt of, or is entitled to the receipt 

of, such pay 
 An allowance, payment or indemnity given to 

members 
 Any ceremonial honour given to members 

 Setting council tax or a precept under the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 

 

October 

2016 

All members who meet the following criteria: 
 

 The member has a disclosable pecuniary interest for 
any licence held (alone or jointly with others) to 

occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for 
a month or longer; and 

 The nature of the business specifically relates to the 
consideration of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 

Strategy as a whole 
 

December 
2016 

All members who meet the following criteria: 

 
 The member has a disclosable pecuniary interest for 

a beneficial interest in land held in the area of the 
authority; and 

 The nature of the business wholly relates to the 
development or implementation of policies concerning 

houses in multiple occupation 
 

September 

2018 

All members who meet the following criteria: 

 
a) the member has a disclosable pecuniary interest for any 

licence held (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer; 

and  
  

b) the nature of the business specifically relates to the 
consideration of Central Lincolnshire Local Plan, or a plan or 

strategy comprising part of the Policy or Financial 
Framework. 

December 

2018 

47



Dispensation Given                      Expiry  

Date 

   

 

 

 

Personal Interests 

The content of the Council’s Member Code of Conduct is now decided by 

Council, rather than following a national model. Council has determined 
that members should declare a range of interests in addition to DPIs. 

These interests are called personal interests. 
 

You have a personal interest in any business 
of the Council where either it relates to or is 

likely to affect: 
 

(i) any body of which you are a 
member or in a position of general 

control or management and to which 

you are appointed or nominated by 
your authority; 

 
(ii) any body— 

 
(aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 

 
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or 

 
(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of 

public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade 
union),  

 
of which you are a member or in a position of general control 

or management; 

 

Example 
Cllr Joyce is a member of a 

local charity which the 
Council has been consulting. 

If the matter comes up in a 
meeting Cllr Joyce is 

attending he should declare 
a personal interest in the 

matter but can continue to 

take part in the meeting, as 
long as that the interest is 

not pecuniary. 

Example 

Cllr Holter has a licence to occupy a Council allotment. The allotment 
charges are considered as part of setting the Council’s Medium Term 

Financial Strategy. Cllr Holter should declare her Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest but explain that she will use the relevant dispensation above to 
take part in the vote and discussion. 

48



(iii) any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which 

does not carry with it a right for you (alone or jointly with another) 
to occupy the land or to receive income. 

 
You will also have a personal interest in any business of your authority: 

 
(iv) where a decision in relation to that business might reasonably 

be regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or 
the well-being or financial position of a relevant person to a 

greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, 
ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral division or ward, as 

the case may be, affected by the decision, or 
 

(v) it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests you have 
registered as a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

A relevant person is either: 
 

(a) a member of your family or any person 
with whom you have a close association; or 

 
(b) any person or body who employs or has 

appointed such persons, any firm in which they 
are a partner, or any company of which they 

are directors; 
 

(c) any person or body in whom such persons 
have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 

exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 

(d) any body of a type described in section ii 

above. 
 

Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority 
which relates to or is likely to affect a person described in section (i) or 

(ii)(aa) above you need only disclose to the meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest when you address the meeting on that business. 

 
 

Personal and Pecuniary Interests 

If you have a personal interest in an item, that interest can become a 

pecuniary interest in the following circumstances: 

 
 Where a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant 

interest would reasonably regard it as so significant that it is likely 
to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where that 

business either: 

Example 

Cllr Bergman regularly 
says hello to a fellow 

dog walker in the park. 
At a Licensing 

Committee meeting he 

recognises the man as 
the applicant for a 

licence. Cllr Bergman 
does not have a 

personal interest to 
declare as the 

applicant is unlikely to 
be a close associate. 

49



 

(a) affects your financial position or the financial position of a 
relevant person or body; or 

 
(b) relates to the 

determining of any approval, 
consent, licence, permission 

or registration in relation to 
you or any relevant person or 

body. 
 

If you have a personal and pecuniary 
interest you must leave the meeting for 

the duration of the item and take no part 
in the discussion or vote. 

 

Where you have a personal and pecuniary interest, you may attend a 
meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering 

questions or giving evidence relating to the business. This right only 
applies if a member of the public would have the same right. You must 

also leave the room where the meeting is held immediately after making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence. These 

attendance rights do not apply if you are also affected by a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest. 

 

Gifts and Hospitality 

If you receive any gifts or hospitality from any person or 

body (other than the Council) with a value in excess of 
£50 you must register this with the Monitoring Officer 

within 28 days. This information is then placed on a 
public register. You should carefully consider whether you 

should take part in any business relating to the person or 
body who has provided the gift or hospitality to you. 

 
 

Scrutiny 

Councillors who have taken part in reaching a particular decision should 

not be directly involved in scrutinising that decision and should declare 

that they have a conflict of interests preventing them from participating. 

£50 
Gifts and 

Hospitality 
Threshold 

Example 

Cllr Beckett’s best friend 
lives next door to a proposed 

firework factory. The 
application is being 

considered by the Planning 

Committee. Cllr Beckett 
should declare a personal 

and pecuniary interest if 
sitting on the Planning 

Committee. 

Example 
Cllr Grass was previously on the Executive when it decided to install a 

Ferris wheel on top of City Hall. Cllr Grass is now a member of the 
scrutiny committee examining the impact of this decision. He should 

therefore declare an interest in the item and take no part in scrutinising 
it, unless called to give evidence in relation to his previous role. 

50



 

 

 

Council Tax 

It can be a criminal offence for you to vote on matters relating to setting 

the council tax if you are in arrears with your own payments. Please seek 
the guidance of the Monitoring Officer if in any doubt whatsoever as to 

whether you may be affected. 

 

Bias 

It is possible that you might not have an interest to declare in an item but 
a court would still find that you were biased 

in making a decision because of your 

personal circumstances. If your personal 
circumstances link you closely with some 

business of the council so that you might 
find, or be perceived to find, it difficult to 

take an impartial decision there is a 
possibility that you are biased. English 

courts recognise three different types of 
bias: apparent, presumed, and actual.  

 
 Apparent bias takes places when a 

fair-minded and informed observer in 
possession of the relevant facts about 

the councillor and the decision would 
decide that there was a real possibility 

that:  

 
o the councillor could approach a 

matter with a closed mind; and  
o the councillor could not give impartial consideration of the 

relevant matters. 
 

 Presumed bias covers a councillor having a direct financial interest 
in a decision. This extends beyond the rules regarding your spouse’s 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests to cover those with whom you have 
a close relationship.  

 
 Actual bias occurs when a court finds evidence showing that a 

decision maker has actually been biased in reaching their decision.  
 

Bias can result from: 
 Hostility towards 

someone affected by 
the decision. 

 Friendship with 
someone affected by 

the decision. 
 Membership of a 

group affected by 

the decision. 
 You or someone 

close to you being 
financially affected 

by the decision. 
 The appearance of 

bias, even if no bias 
is actually present. 

51



If you think you may be affected by bias or could be considered by an 

informed observer to be biased you should not take part in business 
relating to the relevant matter. 

  

52



Predetermination 

When taking a decision, councillors must be sure that they have not 
previously made up their mind so as to 

exclude the possibility of changing it.  
 

The test for predetermination is that there 
must be ‘positive evidence’ that a councillor 

has a closed mind. Predetermination should 
be distinguished from having a 

predisposition towards taking a certain 
decision. The key difference is that a 

councillor with a predisposition towards 

voting a particular way is willing to change 
their mind while someone who has 

predetermined how they will vote is not 
willing to change their mind. 

 
Councillors are 

not expected to completely avoid declaring 
their opinions on business in advance of a 

meeting. It is recognised that councillors are 
elected representatives and will often have 

expressed their views in public before 
reaching a decision.  

 
However, you should always remain open to 

the possibility of reaching a different 

decision based on the evidence presented to 
you. It is good practice, particularly for 

decisions relating to Licensing and Planning 
Committees, to state expressly that you will consider all of the evidence 

presented to you before reaching a final decision. 

Example 
A political group has 

given its members a 
three-line whip to vote a 

particular way. Provided 
that a full debate is 

undertaken on the matter 
and the councillors have 

a proper chance to 
change their minds, this 

should not be regarded 
as predetermination. 

Example 

A planning application for 
the development of an old 

people’s home is being 
considered. Councillor 

Black has previously 
stated his opposition to 

any more old people’s 
home in his ward. 

However, Councillor Black 
will be able to take part in 

the decision provided that 
he has not already made 
up his mind. 

53



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 7 DECEMBER 2015 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND 
CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES) 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To put forward the current Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 

for consideration by members. 
 

2. Work Programme Summary 
 

2.1 The work programme is attached as Appendix A, and was agreed at the last 
meeting of the Committee. 
 

2.2 Members are encouraged to put forward any proposals for relevant matters of 
concern or interest to them or the residents of their ward which the Ethics and 
Engagement Committee may be able to consider. 
 

3. Changes Made to the Work Programme 
 

3.1 
 

At the meeting of 23 March 2015, the work programme for 2015/16 was agreed. 
There is flexibility within the work programme to react to changing priorities as 
necessary. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
Any additions to the work programme should be made in accordance with the 
scope of the Committee as established within its terms of reference. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That the Committee consider the work programme and propose any suitable 
changes if necessary. 
 

5.2 
 

That the Committee consider items scheduled for the next meeting and any 
necessary arrangements relating to them. 

 

55

Item No. 8



This page is intentionally blank.



APPENDIX A 
 

Ethics and Engagement Committee Work Programme 2015/16 
 

8 June 2015 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Induction Review Following consideration of the plans for the induction of 
any newly-elected councillors in May 2015, this will 
provide an opportunity for members to consider the 
outcome of the induction provided to new members. 
 

 To consider the delivery of member 
inductions and to offer any 
recommendations for future 
improvement. 

Local Democracy Week 
Update 

To update members on the plans for Local Democracy 
Week 2015. 
 

 To consider the arrangements made 
and recommend any suitable changes. 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme. 
 To consider the arrangements for the 

next meeting. 

 
 
21 September 2015 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Local Democracy 
Week Update 

To update members on the plans for Local Democracy 
Week 2015. 
 

 To consider the arrangements made 
and recommend any suitable changes. 

Member Development 
Update 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 

 To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

57



perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme. 
 To consider the arrangements for the 

next meeting. 

 
7 December 2015 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Individual Electoral 
Registration 

Individual electoral registration (IER) has been 
introduced across the country, shifting the process for 
registering electors from a household to an individual 
basis. 
 

 To consider the manner in which IER 
has been implemented within Lincoln 
and the potential impact upon voter 
registration. 

 

Improving Member 
Development Attendance 

To consider whether and how councillors can be 
encouraged to take part in member development 
events. 
 

 To discuss options for improving 
member attendance, potentially via 
using e-learning or alternative forms of 
training delivery. 

 To investigate the possibility of  
sanctions or incentives to encourage 
attendance. 
 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme for 
2015/16. 

 To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 
 

58



21 March 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Development 
Update 
 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 
perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

 To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

Work Programme 2016/17 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme for 
2016/17. 

 To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 59



T
his page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 21 September 2015
	3 Individual Electoral Registration - Update
	4 Code of Conduct: Cases Review
	5 Improving Member Development Attendance
	6 Proposed Changes to the Constitution
	Proposed Changes to the Constitution - Appendix A
	Proposed Changes to the Constitution - Appendix B
	Proposed Changes to the Constitution - Appendix C
	Proposed Changes to the Constitution - Appendix D

	7 A Councillor's Guide to Interests
	A Councillor's Guide to Interests - Appendix A

	8 Work Programme Update
	Work Programme Update - Appendix A


